

2018), *not rev'd in relevant part*, Comm'n Notice (Nov. 1, 2018).

Certain patent claims were subsequently withdrawn and terminated from the investigation. *See* Order No. 20 (Jan. 31, 2019), *not rev'd*, Comm'n Notice (Feb. 19, 2019); Order No. 48 (June 5, 2019), *not rev'd*, Comm'n Notice (June 18, 2019); Order No. 49 (June 13, 2019), *not rev'd*, Comm'n Notice (June 28, 2019). At the time of the FID, the claims at issue were claims 1–3, 5, and 9 of the '187 patent; claim 12 of the '104 patent; claims 1–2 and 4–8 of the '752 patent; claims 11 and 20 of the '027 patent; claims 11 and 13 of the '844 patent; and claims 17–18 and 25–26 of the '583 patent. *See* Comm'n Notice (June 28, 2019).

On November 13, 2019, the ALJ issued an FID finding no violation of section 337. *See* FID. On November 15, 2019, the ALJ issued a Notice of Correction to Conclusions of Law in Initial Determination on Violation of Section 337 and a corrected FID issued on November 18, 2019. The corrected FID fixes a typographical error in the conclusions of law and correctly identifies Respondents found to infringe the '583 patent. *See* FID at p. 272.

The FID also contains the ALJ's recommended determination recommending, if a violation is found, that the Commission issue a limited exclusion order prohibiting the importation of infringing infotainment systems, components thereof, and automobiles containing same that infringe, as well as cease and desist orders directed to certain domestic respondents.

On November 26, 2019, Broadcom filed a petition for review of the FID and the respondents filed a contingent petition for review. On December 4, 2019, Broadcom and the respondents filed responses to each other's petitions.

On December 16, 2019, Broadcom filed a submission on the public interest pursuant to Commission Rule 210.50(a)(4) (19 CFR 210.50(a)(4)). That same day, Toyota, Renesas, and Tier 1 Suppliers (DENSO Corp., DENSO TEN, Panasonic, and Pioneer) filed their submissions on the public interest pursuant to Commission Rule 210.50(a)(4) (19 CFR 210.50(a)(4)). On December 18, 2019, two non-parties, Peter Morici and the Reshoring Initiative, filed submissions on the public interest in response to the Commission's notice requesting such responses. 84 FR 64104 (Nov. 20, 2019).

On March 3, 2020, the Commission determined to review the FID in part and requested briefing on certain issues. 85 FR 12576–78 (March 3, 2020). Specifically, the Commission

determined to review the FID's findings on: (1) The claim construction of the limitation "at least one processor" recited in claims 25 and 26 of the '583 patent; (2) infringement of the asserted claims of the '583 patent; (3) technical prong of the domestic industry requirement as to the '583 patent; (4) invalidity of the asserted claims of the '752 patent; and (5) whether the accused Pioneer head units meet the limitations of claims 2 and 5 of the '752 patent. *Id.* The Commission requested briefing on some of the issues under review, and remedy, bonding, and the public interest. *Id.* On March 11, 2020, the parties filed their written responses to the Commission's request for briefing. On March 18, 2020, the parties filed their reply submissions.

On March 11, 2020, additional submissions on remedy, bonding, and the public interest were received from the following non-parties: Representatives and Senators from Kentucky; Representatives and Senators from Texas; Harman International Industries, Incorporated; and the Alliance for Automotive Innovation.

Having examined the record of this investigation, including the FID, the petitions for review, and the responses thereto, and filings in response to the Commission's request for briefing, the Commission has determined to affirm, with modified reasoning, the FID's finding of no violation of section 337. Specifically, the Commission affirms, with modified reasoning as explained in the Commission opinion, that: (1) Claims 25 and 26 of the '583 patent are not infringed by any Respondent; (2) the technical prong of the domestic industry requirement is not met for the '583 patent; (3) the Pioneer head units do not meet the limitations of claims 2 and 5 of the '752 patent; and (4) claims 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, and 8 of the '752 patent are invalid as anticipated and obvious. The Commission affirms the FID's infringement finding as to claims 17 and 18 of the '583 patent.

The investigation is terminated.

The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: April 30, 2020.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2020–09636 Filed 5–5–20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—CHEDE–8

Notice is hereby given that, on April 21, 2020, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* ("the Act"), CHEDE–8 ("CHEDE–8") has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act's provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, DENSO Corporation, Aichi-Ken, JAPAN, has been added as a party to this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project. Membership in this group research project remains open, and CHEDE–8 intends to file additional written notifications disclosing all changes in membership.

On December 4, 2019, CHEDE–8 filed its original notification pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on December 30, 2019 (84 FR 71977).

The last notification was filed with the Department on March 2, 2020. A notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on March 20, 2020 (85 FR 16132).

Suzanne Morris,

Chief, Premerger and Division Statistics Unit, Antitrust Division.

[FR Doc. 2020–09624 Filed 5–5–20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410–11–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—National Spectrum Consortium

Notice is hereby given that, on April 21, 2020, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* ("the Act"), National Spectrum Consortium ("NSC") has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its

membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act's provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances.

Specifically, Integration Innovation Inc. (i3), Huntsville, AL; Indiana Tool & Mfg. Co., Inc. DBA ITAMCO, Plymouth, IN; Knowledge Management Inc., Tynngsboro, MA; Simba Chain, Inc., Plymouth, IN; Summation Research, Inc., Melbourne, FL; AVANTech Inc., Columbia, SC; Cobalt Solutions Inc., Austin, TX; Zylinium Research LLC, Atlanta, GA; Augmnt, Inc., Grass Valley, CA; Electronic Design and Development Corp. (ED2), Tucson, AZ; Strategic Data Systems, Inc., Keller, TX; Systems & Technology Research, LLC, Woburn, MA; University at Buffalo, Buffalo, NY; Mavenir Systems, Inc., Richardson, TX; Institute for Building Technology and Safety (IBTS), Ashburn, VA; CIPHER-TM, LLC, Albany, OR; CommScope Technologies LLC, Hickory, NC; XCOM-LABS, INC., San Diego, CA; Iron Bow Technologies, LLC, Herndon, VA; L3 Communications Systems-East, Camden, NJ; Logistics Management Institute (LMI), Tysons, VA; Ansys, Inc., Canonsburg, PA; Hanwha International LLC, Arlington, VA; CesiumAstro, Austin, TX; Conductive Composites Company, Heber City, UT; National Instruments Corporation, Austin, TX; Shipcom Federal Solutions, LLC, Belcamp, MD; Qorvo Texas, LLC, Richardson, TX; Technology Service Corporation (TSC), Arlington, VA; Huckworthy LLC, Washington, DC; AVT Simulation, Orlando, FL; Consolidated Resource Imaging LLC (CRI), Grand Rapids, MI; Global Technical Systems, Virginia Beach, VA; McKean Defense Group, Philadelphia, PA; PlusN, LLC, Elmsford, NY; and University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA have been added as parties to this venture.

Also, Expedition Technology, Inc., Dulles, VA; Telspan Data, LLC, Concord, CA; and Red Balloon Security, Inc., New York, NY have withdrawn as parties from this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project. Membership in this group research project remains open and NSC intends to file additional written notifications disclosing all changes in membership.

On September 24, 2014, NSC filed its original notification pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on November 4, 2014 (72 FR 65424).

The last notification was filed with the Department on January 21, 2020. A

notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on February 27, 2020 (85 FR 11396).

Suzanne Morris,

Chief, Premerger and Division Statistics Unit, Antitrust Division.

[FR Doc. 2020-09664 Filed 5-5-20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-11-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—Undersea Technology Innovation Consortium

Notice is hereby given that, on April 21, 2020, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* ("the Act"), Undersea Technology Innovation Consortium ("UTIC") has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act's provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, Altron Inc., Mount Pleasant, SC; Aretec Inc., Providence, RI; BAE Systems Land & Armaments L.P., Minneapolis, MN; BoxBoat Technologies LLC, Bethesda, MD; Btech Acoustics LLC, Barrington, RI; Cardinal Point Captains Inc., San Diego, CA; Cesium GS Inc., Philadelphia, PA; Consolidated Ocean Technologies Inc., Ventura, CA; Coulometrics LLC, Chattanooga, TN; DeepWater Buoyancy Inc., Biddeford, ME; Dynexus Technology Inc., Niwot, CO; GE Research, Niskayuna, NY; Hefring LLC, Boston, MA; iArchimedes Inc., Arlington, VA; Kenautics Inc., Encinitas, CA; KULR Technology Corporation, Campbell, CA; Maritime Arresting Technologies, Tarpon Springs, FL; Michigan Tech. University, Houghton, MI; Mistral Inc., Bethesda, MD; RJE International Inc., Irvine, CA; SAILDRONE INC., Alameda, CA; Sellers and Associates LLC (S&A), Chesapeake, VA; Torch Technologies Inc., Huntsville, AL; University of Dayton, Dayton, OH; University of Houston Cullen College of Engineering, Houston, TX; University of South Alabama, Mobile, AL; and Venator Solutions LLC, San Diego, CA have been added as parties to this venture.

Also, Adolf Meller Co. dba Meller Optics, Providence, RI; Analytical Graphics Inc., Exton, PA; AVL

Powertrain Engineering Inc., Plymouth, MI; Carillon Technologies Management, Arlington, VA; DLT Solutions, Herndon, VA; Falmouth Scientific Inc., Cataumet, MA; Manufacturing Techniques Inc., Kilmarnock, VA; Planck Aerosystems Inc., San Diego, CA; Presco Engineering, Woodbridge, CT; Riptide Autonomous Solutions LLC, Plymouth, MA; RPI Group Inc., Fredericksburg, VA; Scientific Solutions Inc., Nashua, NH; Tampa Deep Sea Xplorers LLC, Tampa, FL; URSA Inc., Exeter, NH; Welkins LLC, Downers Grove, IL; and XST Inc., San Diego, CA have withdrawn as parties from this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project. Membership in this group research project remains open, and UTIC intends to file additional written notifications disclosing all changes in membership.

On October 9, 2018, UTIC filed its original notification pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on November 2, 2018 (83 FR 55203).

The last notification was filed with the Department on January 21, 2020. A notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on February 27, 2020 (85 FR 11397).

Suzanne Morris,

Chief, Premerger and Division Statistics Unit, Antitrust Division.

[FR Doc. 2020-09661 Filed 5-5-20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-11-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Office of the Secretary

Agency Information Collection Activities; Submission for OMB Review; Comment Request; Student Safety Assessment of Job Corps Centers

ACTION: Notice of availability; request for comments.

SUMMARY: The Department of Labor (DOL) is submitting this Employment and Training Administration (ETA)-sponsored information collection request (ICR) to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for review and approval in accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (PRA). Public comments on the ICR are invited.

DATES: The OMB will consider all written comments that agency receives on or before June 5, 2020.

ADDRESSES: Written comments and recommendations for the proposed